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The appearance of this house today is most likely very similar to

| its original appearamce. During the years three porches have adorned
the house, starting in the 1850's with a small front porch flanked by

a bay window to the left which no longer exists.' Around 1898 a rambling
porch was added which swept across the front of the building and down
its southwest facade. In turn, this porch was removed more re-

cently and replaced with the present small porch supported by two

Ionic columns in front of two Ionic pilasters. '

N\ The house is built of indigenous sandstone from the Westport quarry,
as are many of Madison's other aristocratic mid-19th century houses. Unlike
the others, however, this house has an 4§§ymmetric facade composed of
three blocky masses. To the right of the entrance is a one-story, flat-
roofed stone projection with a pair of deeply-recessed windows which
are unadorned by hooded moldings. Other windows in the facade are
also deeply-recessed, but have generous hood moldings with keystone motifs.
These richly-formed windows, casting marked shadows, are the most striking
feature of the main elevation, closely followed by the generous eaves
of the roof which are supported on large brackets. These brackets are
paired at corners, which are further embellished by recessed panels under
the eaves. On the northeast elevation is a white, one~story bay window.

N Attached to the rear of the main body of the house is a subordinate
stone wing which is less elaborately executed.\ The roof is lowered
and walls planes recessed, and the windows are smaller with only plain
lintels and sills. Roof brackets are also smaller, and are paired.

N The house has a very gently-sloped hipped roof topped by N
a widow's walk. Four centrally-located chimneys penetrate the roof.

The design of the house is unusually restrained for the mid-19th
century, making it appealing to one with contemporary taste.

Assigning the proper "style".to a+midwestern building of this period

is often hazardous because of the way styles quickly came and

went, and because designers had no qualms about combining styles which
had been regarded as incompatible previously. ™ This house is a Victorian
design with Italianate influences\a '"style" shared with many other
Madison residences of the period.

Toward the end of the last century, a Norwegian formal terraced
garden was built on the northwestern lawn of this house. Though this
garden is no longer preserved, traces of it can be found today. The
spacious. lawns on this side of the house run down to the shore of Lake
Mendota, where a University of Wiscons‘§‘i;}w se has been built only
recently, e
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STATEMENT OF SIGNIFICANCE

The 0ld Executive Mansion is of statewide historical importance
because it served as the governors' residence for seventeen chiefs of
state from 1883 to 1950.® It is of local architectural importance
because of its exceptionally handsome Victorian design and its use of
indigenous sandstone materials.

There is some discrepancy'betYeen secondary sources which date the:
construction of this house as 1834, and City of Madison tax rolls
which indicate that major construction on this site probably took
place ca. 1856. It can only be assumed, therefore, that the house
was built ca. 1854-1856. The original owner was Julius T. White, a
prominent businessman and later a Union general, causing the house
originally to be known as the "White House." White was an avid art
collector and presided over the social and artistic life of the com-
munity until he left Madison in 1857, selling the house to George P.
Delaplaine, private secretary to the first and second governors of
Wisconsin. White and Delaplaine established a reputation for the house
for lavish parties and entertainment, a reputation which future owners
carried into the 20th century.

A major chapter in the life-of" Ehls house, more important for
social than political history, began when multlmllllonalre lumber bar-
on J.G. Thorp purchased it in 1868 to move his social-climbing wife
- to Madison from Eau Claire, where her considerable social talents

| were withering. ‘Mrs. Thorp ruled Madison's social community from this

house until 1883, a reign Whosecrownlng.achievement was the marriage
of the Thorp daughter, Sara, then 20-years-old, to world-famous vio-
linist Ole Bull, then 60-years-old. Ole Bull made his American
home at this house therafter, and made various landscaping and site
changes to the property to suit his Norwegian taste.

In 1883 Gov. Jeremiah "Uncle Jerry" Rusk bought the house for
$15,000 from:the Thorps, and continued its reputation for lavish social
activity. In 1885, Gov. Rusk sold_the house to the State of Wiscomsin
for a sum "not to exceed $20, 000."3 Rusk left the governorship in
1889 and went to Washington to serve as Secretary of Agriculture under
President Benjamin Harrison. In 1905 the name of Gates County was
changed to Rusk County in his honor.” 1In 1898 or 1899, Gov Edward
Scofield added a rambling porch to the house, which has since been
removed.

To establish the importance of the later history of this house
would merely require the listing of all the Wisconsin governors who
lived there and their accomplishments. In 1950 the house was sold to

the University of Wisconsin and since then it has served, with omne
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[8] exception, as the residence hall for Knapp Scholarship students.
The exception came in 1966 when Gov. Warren P. Knowles and his wife
resided in this house for a short time while the present executive
mansion was being remodeled.>

At the present time, a movement is under way, under the guidance
of the wife of Gov. Patrick Lucey, to reaquire the 0ld Executive
Mansion for the State of Wisconsin and restore it and convert it to a
state museum open to the public.

1-La Follette, p. 140; Dean and Custer, Bldg. #10.
2-La Follette, pp. 142-148.

3-Ibid, p. 148

4-1960 Blue Book, p. 130
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